

Summer High School Course Catalog June 20 — July 27, 2023

Table of Contents

2023 MMSD Summer Semester	2
General Information	2
Schedule	2
Virtual	2
Course Offerings	3
Registration	3
Late Registration	3
Credit Attainment during summer	3
Course cancellations	3
Attendance	3
Students with individualized education programs (IEP's)	4
Transportation (in person only)	4
Additional general information	4
Tuition and Out of District Students	4
Course and Credit Information	5
Credit Recovery and Grade Improvement	5
Grade Improvement	5
First-time Credit	5
Physical Education and Health	5
Experiential Learning/Work Credit*	7
Work Credit/Experience (WRK1010)	7
Work Credit/Experience - Youth Employment Network (WRKY0000)	7
Course Offerings Summary	7
Credit Recovery and Grade Replacement	7
First Time Credit Course Descriptions	10
Summer Semester Enrollment	13

2023 MMSD Summer Semester

MMSD is committed to ensuring every student in our school community feels engaged, connected and supported. One way we ensure that this happens is by making sure students have the knowledge and skills for academic achievement at the next grade level. Summer Semester is a learning support for students to stay on track for graduation to become college, career and community ready. Our students continue to demonstrate a need for high quality instruction with strong support beyond the regular school year. We look forward to our students continuing their learning with us during the summer.

The summer of 2023 will offer credit recovery opportunities for students entering grades 10, 11 or 12 in the fall of 2023, and for students who are short credits in order to graduate in August 2023. There will be some First Time Credit for students entering grades 9-12. Course availability depends on staffing and course enrollment. See list of courses below.

- Grades 9-12 programming will be primarily virtual for students to allow for more flexibility for students accommodating work schedules, extracurricular activities and general access to a variety of courses.
- In person High School support is available at feeder MS summer sites, determined by student/virtual teacher as needed.

Dates

General Information

High School Summer Semester takes place Monday through Thursday, June 20-July 27, 2023 (no school June 19, July 3 & 4)

General Schedule/Expectations		
Type of Credit	Virtual or In Person	
Credit Recovery (CR)	2.5 hours of coursework Asynchronous/Synchronous time determined by teacher/course	
Elective Credit (.25)	2.5 hours of coursework Asynchronous/Synchronous time determined by teacher/course	
First Time Credit (.50)	4 hours/day of coursework Asynchronous/Synchronous time determined by teacher/course	

Course Offerings

For a full list of course offerings, please see the Course Offerings Summary in this catalog.

Registration

If you are recommended to attend MMSD Summer School to recover credit, your school counselor will contact you. If you have questions about whether you should attend Summer Semester, please reach out to your school counselor.

If you would like to take elective credits and/or first time credit, please complete the interest form on the <u>Summer Semester web page</u>. (available April 12, 2023) before **Friday**, **May 12**, **2023** for priority consideration. You will be notified by the end of May regarding your request.

Late Registration (not for First Time Credit)

For those who are unable to register in advance, registration for credit recovery courses may be completed via summer school on **Friday**, **June 16**, **2023** from **8:00** A.M. to **1:00** P.M. by contacting Emily Nevel, Summer Semester HS Virtual Office @ 204-1613 or ejnevel@madison.k12.wi.us. Students will be scheduled for courses in the order that requests are received. It is advised that you register as soon as possible as some courses may no longer be available, and courses with limited enrollment will be closed as soon as the maximum number of students is reached. The final day to register for high school Summer Semester 2023 classes is **Thursday**, **June 22**, **2023**. Students are responsible for completing all course assignments, regardless of registration date.

Credit Attainment during summer

In general, students may earn up to 1.5 credits during the summer, with the exception of Experiential Learning. Depending on the need for credit and format of instruction, students may take more than one course at a time. Please work with your school counselor in late spring to determine the best scenario for you.

Course cancellations

A course may be canceled if enrollment is below the minimum number of students needed to justify offering the course. In such cases, students will be notified of the cancellation and provided an opportunity to enroll in another course.

Attendance

Since Summer Semester courses are 18-week courses condensed into 6 weeks, one day of absence is equivalent to 3 days during the regular school year.

Virtual students are expected to be engaged in their assigned courses. If there is a lack of engagement or progress, you may be dropped from the course.

In person students are expected to be on time for class to maximize instructional time. Students who are not attending and/or not progressing in their course, then the SS Principal, teacher and student will need to meet to develop an action plan to ensure course completion. If there is no progress with the plan you may be dropped from the course.

Students with individualized education programs (IEP's)

Students with disabilities will be provided access to Summer Semester; however, IEP's will not be implemented in summer semester unless an Extended School Year IEP is on file. Consult with your school counselor and/or case manager before registering for courses.

Transportation (in person only)

Madison Metro Summer Youth Bus passes are available at your site on the first day of Summer Semester. For route information go to: <u>https://www.cityofmadison.com/metro/routes-schedules</u>

Additional general information

Summer Semester is an extension of the regular school year, therefore, all other rules and procedures from the regular school year must be observed during Summer Semester. MMSD follows the Behavior Education Plan accordingly. Students who are removed two times from a class for inappropriate behavior may be dropped from that class and will not receive credit. Students suspended two times from Summer Semester will be dropped from Summer Semester. If in person, loitering in school or on campus will not be allowed. Students who arrive early are to wait outside of the school building. The only areas students are to be in or use in the school are the Summer Semester instructional areas and halls leading directly to or from these instructional areas.

Tuition and Out of District Students

There are no course fees for Summer Semester, and students who reside in the MMSD attendance area or have been attending MMSD for the current school year under Open Enrollment, do not need to pay tuition. However, students who reside outside of the MMSD attendance area AND have not been attending MMSD for the current school year will be charged tuition of \$510 per class. Per Wis. Stat. § 118.52(2), a student enrolled in a public school in the high school grades may attend public school in a nonresident school district for the purposes of taking a course offered by the nonresident district. This means that as long as the student was enrolled in high school in any public school, they may participate in Part Time Open Enrollment (PTOE) as long as space is available in the non-resident school district. For more information about the PTOE process, click <u>here</u>. Parents must have the PTOE form approved by the resident school district first before sending the form to the MMSD Summer School Office. Several area districts will pay tuition for approved courses. In these instances, non-MMSD resident students should speak with their school counselor and MUST obtain approval from their Principal, or they will be responsible for out-of-district tuition. All questions regarding tuition may be directed to the Summer Semester site principal (see contact information). *Please submit a check or money order, not cash, for the correct amount to cover tuition. Make checks payable to "MMSD Summer Semester 2023."

Course and Credit Information

Credit Recovery and Grade Improvement

If you have previously taken a course, and either did not pass this course and/or earned a lower grade than desired, you may recover credits through credit recovery or grade replacement. The following are the types of course available:

<u>Virtual Learning Credit Recovery</u> courses are taken virtually with a licensed teacher providing students the opportunity to retake previous courses not passed (NP). In person High School support is available at feeder MS summer sites, determined by student/virtual teacher as needed.

<u>Blended Credit Recovery</u> courses use our MMSD approved online program (Edgenuity) guided by a teacher with 24/7 access to their online course and can be completed **asynchronously**. Students who may be good online learners can complete their course quickly. Once a student completes their course they can either move on to another course to recover, if needed, or can be finished with summer school early. This is very motivating for students. <u>Please note these courses would not be for students who are on track for NCAA eligibility</u>.

Grade Improvement

Summer Semester courses may be used to replace the grade in a course previously taken if the student earned a D, C or B (priority for grade replacement will be given to students with the lowest grades to replace). The Summer Semester course must be the **same course** taken during the regular school year in order for the grade to be replaced. Grade improvement is based on course availability.

- A student would like to improve their Algebra I grade, they must take Algebra I in summer school.
- A student would like to improve their Algebra I Honors grade, they may take Algebra I in summer school (Honors courses are not offered in Summer School).
- AP grades may not be replaced with an Honors or regular course as the curriculum does not align.

Grading

2023 Summer Semester: 9-12 Letter Grades (A, B, C, D, NC)

First-time Credit

If you have never before taken a course (other than in some instances in Physical Education), then you have a couple of options. For more information, including descriptions of the available courses, please see the end of this document. Students may take up to 0.5 credits during Summer Semester for first-time credit, with the exception of Experiential Learning. Students accepted into ECSA can take PE through Madison College if they need PE credits to graduate. Therefore, we do not prioritize ECSA students over others for first-time credit summer classes.

Physical Education and Health

1.5 credits of Physical Education (PE) and 0.5 credits of Health are required for graduation. These summer courses are 4 days per week and worth 0.5 credits. Space is limited and a lottery will be used if registration exceeds capacity. Priority is given to students who have not previously taken any Physical Education courses. If there is space, the course will be opened to 10th-12th graders. The deadline to be considered for the lottery is **Friday, May 12.** All enrollment after the lottery deadline is based on a first come, first served basis.

The following students are eligible to take these courses:

- First time Physical Education
 - Rising 9th graders (8th grade as of the end of 2022-2023 school year)
 - An interest form will be shared with Rising 9th grade families the week of April 10 and will remain open till May 12.
 - Current 9th graders and older (who have not previously taken any PE course and/or V-PHY4040)
 - If space permits, slots will be open to rising 10th-12th graders (who have already completed one or more Physical Education Courses and/or V-PHY4040)
 - This is NOT for Grade Replacement.
- First time Health
 - Rising 12th graders (who have not previously taken Health)
 - Rising 11th graders (who have not previously taken Health)
 - If space permits, rising 10th graders (9th grade at the end of the 2022-23 school year)
 - This course is NOT for Grade Replacement.

Art & Music Courses

New for Summer 2023 we are offering Art & Music first time credit courses for rising 9th and current 9th-12th grade students. Each summer course meets 4 days per week and is worth 0.5 credits, except Jazz Band. Space is limited and a lottery will be used if registration exceeds capacity. The deadline to be considered for the lottery is Friday, May 12. All enrollment after the lottery deadline is based on a first come, first served basis.

Personal Finance

Personal Finance is one of the most useful classes you can take to prepare for your future! And, .5 credit of Financial Literacy is required for graduation and this course satisfies the requirement. Learn to manage your personal financial affairs through real-life applications. Areas of study include investing, banking, taxes, credit, acquiring insurance and loans, budgeting, and successful employment skills. Technology is infused throughout this course, with applications ranging from personal money management to preparation of income tax forms to evaluating investment options. Walk away from this class with the WISE Financial Literacy Certification. This online course consists of both teacher-led sessions and independent modules that allow students to work on their own time (~5 hours per week) while gaining valuable life skills and knowledge. **Enrollment deadline is May 12, 2023.** Space is limited and a lottery will be used if registration exceeds capacity.

The following students are eligible to take the course:

- First time Personal Finance
 - Rising 12th graders (who have not previously taken Personal Finance)
 - Rising 11th graders (who have not previously taken Personal Finance)
 - If space permits, rising 10th graders (9th grade at the end of the 2022-23 school year)

Experiential Learning/Work Credit*

Earn elective credit towards graduation through successful part-time work or volunteer experience. Number of credits earned is based on the number of documented work/volunteer hours. Students who are taking credit recovery or other courses in the morning are eligible for Experiential Learning Credit as well. Students need to meet the following requirements:

1. Maintain continuous paid employment or documented volunteer service for a range of hours:

Hours	Credits
45-89	.25
90-134	.5
135-179	.75
180-224	1.0

2. Complete and submit required documentation related to the work/volunteer experience:

• Education/training agreement and learning plan, timesheet, weekly check-ins, and final reflection.

These students have the opportunity to earn the Wisconsin Employability Skills or Youth Leadership Skills Certificate. All work/volunteer hours applied toward Summer School must be completed by July 28, 2023. Number of credits earned is based on the number of verified work and volunteer hours: see details above.

Work Credit/Experience (WRK1010)

For students engaged in a District approved experiential learning activity facilitated by the Summer Semester Experiential Learning Liaison. Students are responsible for obtaining their own work/volunteer experience.

Work Credit/Experience - Youth Employment Network (WRKY0000)

For students engaged in an experiential learning activity through the Youth Employment Network of Greater Madison (YEN) and affiliated Community-Based Organizations. YEN organizations will coordinate student interviews and make hiring decisions.

*Please note that Experiential Learning opportunities are only available to MMSD students.

Course Offerings Summary

Credit Recovery and Grade Replacement

- Credit: .5
- Virtual: 4 days/week
- In person Duration: 2 hours, 5 minutes/day, 4 days/week
- Course Availability depends on staffing and student enrollment

Course Name	
English	Format
English 1 - ENG1010	Virtual
English 2 - ENG1040	Virtual
English 3 - ENG1070	Virtual
English 4 - ENG1110	Virtual
English Fundamentals 1 -ENG1291	In person
English Fundamentals 2 - ENG1292	In person
Math	Format
Algebra I • Semester 1: MAT1011; Semester 2: MAT1012	Virtual
Geometry • Semester 1: MAT2011; Semester 2: MAT2012	Virtual
Algebra 2/Trigonometry • Semester 1: MAT3011; Semester 2: MAT3012	Virtual
Science	Format
Biology - SCI1020	Virtual
Integrated Science - SCI6010	Virtual
Chemistry - SCI3030	Virtual
Social Studies	Format
US History - SOC1010	Virtual
World History Overview - SOC2010	Virtual
Modern US History - SOC1040	Virtual
Health & Physical Education (Credit Recovery)	Format
Health Education - PHY1030	Virtual
Physical Education - PHY1010	Virtual

First-time Credit Courses

- Credit: .5
- Duration: 4 days/week
- In person Duration: 4 hours, 5 minutes/day, 4 days/week
- Course Availability depends on staffing and student enrollment

Course Name	
Health & Physical Education	Format
MMSD First Time Health Education V-PHY1031	Virtual
MMSD First Time Health Education PHY1031	In person
<u>MMSD First Time PE - Fitness Lifestyle Design</u> V-PHY4040	Virtual
MMSD First Time Physical Education PHY1011	In Person
West African Dance and Drum PHY6040	In Person
Personal Finance	
Personal Finance - V-BUS2050	Virtual
Art	
Digital Photography Art7070	Virtual
Basic Art Metalworking Art 5090	In Person
Music	
Digital Music Production MUS5050	In Person

Additional First-Time Credit Opportunities

- Credit: .25
- Virtually: 4 days/week
- In person duration: 2 hours, 5 minutes/day, 4 days/week

Course Name	
General Education	Format
Pre ACT Prep-GEN7020	Virtual-See website for more information
ACT Prep - GEN6050	Virtual - See website for more information
ESL Literacy Skills 1 - A-GEN2291 ESL Literacy Skills 2 - A- GEN2292	In person
Music	
Jazz Band MUS5060	In Person

Experiential Learning/Work Credit

• Number of credits earned is based on the number of verified work and volunteer hours, see details above.

Course name
Work Experience
Work Experience - WRK1010 Work Experience (Youth Employment Network) - WRKY0000

First Time Credit Course Descriptions

For a complete list of all other course descriptions, please refer to your high school's regular year course catalog, available on your high school's website.

PRE ACT Prep

GEN7020

This virtual course will offer a unique free opportunity for incoming 9th graders. This Non-Negotiable Skills series is a research-based program to support students with a rigorous, comprehensive review of the skills needed to succeed in high school and beyond. Each unit focuses on mastering core academic skills through lessons, practice, exercises, and two Mastery Quizzes for each subject, and these resources present the non-negotiable content and practice needed for improvement in grammar, reading, writing, vocabulary, math, and science skills at each of three different levels.

ACT Prep

GEN6050

This virtual course will offer a unique free opportunity to prepare for the ACT, a standardized test commonly used in the college admissions & scholarship processes. Through this course taught by academic prep professionals, you will learn how to maximize test performance, extend your vocabulary,

increase your comprehension of difficult passages, and learn how to write a position/support essay. Research has shown that preparation and practice can significantly enhance how well you do on the actual test and decrease test anxiety. Higher ACT scores may impact your college admissions, scholarship opportunities and overall preparedness for college.

West African Dance & Drum PHY6040

Explore West African dancing and drumming AND fulfill required PE credit through this movement and music based class. Instructors Maya Kadakia (UW-Madison Dance Dept, MMSD) and Mandjou Mara (master drummer and singer from Guinea) provide a fun environment to learn beginning West African dance and drum technique, culture, and history, with live music.

Instructors: Maya Kadakia, Mandjou Mara

TIME: 9:00–11:30 am, M-R 4 days/week, 6 weeks, additional 90 minutes asynchronous work LOCATION: Madison Circus Space, 2082 Winnebago St. Madison Capacity: 40

Digital Photography

ART7070

This is an introductory course for students of all levels who are interested in digital photography. In this course you will learn the fundamentals of photography, how to take better pictures, and use a digital camera both with and without manual controls effectively. Students will learn how to creatively compose photographs with a variety of subject matter, study the elements of composition, the use of light, narrative portraiture, and surrealism to create personally meaningful artwork. Students will learn how to use online photo editing programs to manipulate and enhance photos. A digital camera with manual controls is recommended for this course but a phone with a working camera and app that allows for manual controls works as well. For more information contact tparrisford@madison.k12.wi.us.

Week 1; Introductions & Selfies Week 2; Composition Week 3; Motion Blur & Action Week 4; Selective Focus & Portraiture Week 5; Lights & Shadows Week 6; Animated GIF & Portfolio building

INSTRUCTOR: Teri Paris Ford, Memorial High School TIME: 8:30–11:00, plus 90 minutes asynchronous, 4 days/week, 6 weeks LOCATION: all virtual CAPACITY: 40 students

Digital Music Production

MUS5050

Music professional and instructor Derrick Holt will provide students an opportunity to create digital music: sampling, creating beats, and recording songs. Participants will have hands-on experience with tools and technology used to professionally produce music (technology provided). No previous experience required.

INSTRUCTOR: Derrick Holt TIME: 8:30–10:30, plus 90 minutes asynchronous, 4 days/week, 6 weeks LOCATION: Jefferson MS

CAPACITY: 20 students

Jazz Band

MUS5060

A chance to play jazz and learn jazz techniques, for wind, brass, percussion, string, and piano students. Small groups (e.g. jazz trios) and full jazz ensemble. Jazz style and improvisation skills will be a focus. This course will culminate in a final performance and this course is .25 elective credit. INSTRUCTORS: Rob Cunningham, Alyssa Buss TIME: 8:30–11:30am, 4 weeks (July 5-July 27), M-R

LOCATION: Whitehorse Middle School

CAPACITY: 40 students

Basic Art Metalworking

ART5090

Students will learn the practices of metalsmithing, including layering, sawing, hammering, folding, and soldering to create 3D art from 2D designs. Also including body adornment and wearable art, like rings. INSTRUCTOR: Susan Moberly TIME: 8:30–11:30am, 4 days/week, 6 weeks LOCATION: Torn Edge Arts Studio, 1639 Monroe St. CAPACITY: 10 students

ESL Literacy Skills 1

GEN2292

This course is designed for English language learners at early levels of language development (Newcomers and DPI level 1). Students will develop literacy and discussion skills while engaging in both collaborative work with their peers as well as independent work. Lit Skills is designed to expand and deepen students' linguistic foundation (vocabulary and grammar knowledge) as well as to refine their language skills (reading, writing, listening, and speaking) within a communicative academic context. An emphasis on organizational, study skills and test taking strategies necessary for success in American high schools is included.

INSTRUCTOR: Catalina Thomsen TIME: 8:30–10:30 am, 4 days/week, 6 weeks LOCATION: Whitehorse Middle School CAPACITY: 15 students

ESL Literacy Skills 2

GEN2292

This course is designed for English language learners at intermediate levels of language development (DPI Level 2 and 3). Students will develop literacy and discussion skills while engaging in both collaborative work with their peers as well as independent work. Lit Skills is designed to expand and deepen students' linguistic foundation (vocabulary and grammar knowledge) as well as to refine their language skills (reading, writing, listening, and speaking) within a communicative academic context. An emphasis on organizational, study skills and test taking strategies necessary for success in American high schools is included.

INSTRUCTOR: Catalina Thomsen TIME: 10:30-12:30 am, 4 days/week, 6 weeks LOCATION: Whitehorse Middle School CAPACITY: 15 students

First-Time Health

V-PHY1030

This Health Education course is designed to provide skills-based learning experiences that support students in becoming health literate individuals. The course will focus on analyzing internal and external influences, accessing health resources, communicating effectively with others, making healthy decisions, setting personal goals, practicing healthy behaviors, and advocating for personal and community health.

Students who have not previously taken high school health may enroll in this course. Enrollment is limited and the lottery system will be used if registration exceeds capacity. The deadline to be considered for the lottery is May 12th. This course may ONLY be taken one time over your high school career. Students should expect to spend approximately four hours per day, four days per week on instruction and assignments. This course will be offered virtually or in person at Whitehorse MS from 8:30-11:00 4 days/week, for 6 weeks plus asynchronous learning.

V-PHY4040

First-Time PE - Fitness Lifestyle Design

This virtual PE course, Fitness Lifestyle Design, provides opportunities for students to discover habits of body and mind that will lead to a healthier lifestyle. Students will measure their current fitness level and nutrition knowledge and create a plan for achieving their individual health and wellness goals. Students should expect to spend approximately four hours per day, four days per week on instruction and assignments.

Enrollment is limited and the lottery system will be used if registration exceeds capacity. The deadline to be considered for the lottery is May 12th. This summer physical education course may ONLY be taken one time over your high school career. Incoming 9th graders may enroll in this course.

<u>Note:</u> Successful completion of this course will result in the class being dropped from your student's 2022-2023 schedule if it was requested. There is no guarantee that an alternate course request can be fulfilled. Study Hall, Teaching Assistant (TA), or Early/Late Arrival options may need to be considered if other courses are full or not available.

MMSD First Time Physical Education

This course provides opportunities for students to experience a wide variety of physical activities to promote lifelong health and wellness. Through this six-week course, students will strive to refine various motor skills and movement patterns, increase their understanding of activity strategies and concepts, and enhance physical fitness knowledge and performance. There will be 2.5 hours of in person instruction and 2 hours of asynchronous learning 4 days/week. Enrollment is limited and the lottery system will be used if registration exceeds capacity. The deadline to be considered for the lottery is May 12th. TIME: 8:30–11:00 am, 4 days/week, 6 weeks

PHY1011

LOCATION: Wright MS CAPACITY: 30students

Personal Finance

V-BUS2050

Personal Finance is one of the most useful classes you can take to prepare for your future! And, .5 credit of Financial Literacy is required for graduation and this course satisfies the requirement. Learn to manage your personal financial affairs through real-life applications. Areas of study include investing, banking, taxes, credit, acquiring insurance and loans, budgeting, and successful employment skills. Technology is infused throughout this course, with applications ranging from personal money management to preparation of income tax forms to evaluating investment options. Walk away from this class with the WISE Financial Literacy Certification. This online course consists of both teacher-led sessions and

independent modules that allow students to work on their own time (~5 hours per week) while gaining valuable life skills and knowledge.

Summer Semester Enrollment

If you would like to express interest in first time credit, complete the **First Time Credit Application** on the <u>Summer Semester web page</u>. (Available 4/12/23)

If you need to enroll in a course for credit recovery, please contact your school counselor.

East High School	<u>La Follette High School</u>
2222 E. Washington Ave.	702 Pflaum Rd.
Mikki Smith, Principal	Mat Thompson, Principal
Laura Gillis, Summer Counselor	Michelle Olson, Summer Counselor
(608) 204-1635	(608) 204-3600
<u>Memorial High School</u>	<u>West High School</u>
201 S. Gammon Rd.	30 Ash St.
Matt Hendrickson, Principal	Daniel Kiegya, Principal
Troy Arneson, Summer Counselor	Andrew Stendahl, Summer Counselor
(608) 663-5990	(608) 204-4100
<u>Capital High School</u> 1045 E Dayton St. (53703) Victor Chukwudebe, Principal Marianne Matt, Summer Counselor (608) 333-7863	MMSD Summer High School Principals 201 S. Gammon Rd. Meg Filkins, Asst Principal mffilkinsnie@madison.k12.wi.us (608) 663-6042 Patrice Hutchins, Asst Principal pmhutchins@madison.k12.wi.us